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September 21, 2021

Sheriff C. Balderson

Westmoreland County Sherift’s Office
99 Court Square

P.O. Box 305

Montross, VA. 22520

Dear Sheriff Balderson,

Please find the enclosed agency file copy of documents providing notification of
reinstatement as a law-enforcement officer to the following individual:

- Mr. Paul J. Brothers IV

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (804) 225-4503 or via email at
(jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov).

Sincerely,

-~
-

Y -
{~
Jon Banberger
Decertification Coordinator
Law Enforcement Division
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Service



L] G096 1y o S aaR N L~ ~ =~ ™ =
BIH FHL 0L SAOTNG HO. JOL Ly WIS Ao g . ;

i

I

@ Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete A. Bignature
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. X I Agent

B Print your narne and address on the reverse 1 Addresses
50 that we can return the card to yaou. B. Received by { Printad N C. Date of Dell

M Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, Wed by ( Printed Neme) & of belvery

or on the front if space permits,

- - D, Is delivery address different from tem 12 1J Yes
1. Article Addressed tor If YES, srer delivery address below: [ No

Sheriff C. Balderean

Wesimoreland Coun Sherq
er
99 Court Square ¥ s Ofice

PO, Bax 305 3. Service Type
Montross, VA, 22520 O Certified Mall T Express Mail
[ Reglstersd [ Retum Recelpt for Merchandise
' O tnsurad Mall [0 C.0.D.

4. Restricted Delivery? (Exira Fee}

I Yes

2. Article Numbe

(Fransfor from 7020 2450 00CCO L&78 48400
PS Form 3811, February 2004

Domestic Astum Receipt 102585-02-M-1540

"oz TE  BELDE ST HEEwoED
fe2% 22 BREE: .o gBliEEsEe ¥
222 E@E'ﬁ: = = = a § E—“Emﬁ 5 &
SELE 5 E 2 5B EERGEESEEw ry
a2 & = E 8 g
=582 255 E53%2EER2ET s BasrE §
= & SE25E% 24
BEET fIZ £R,33T5cEs8823:25538 @
Doc e STa ::hg-::?,‘ﬁg‘ga:,g Z 853 E E
=E23crBos EECCSECECREERESEREERE §
EREESEEs & -Eac%ggé EL 5EE% by
te‘gwf,gég SRELEEEESERESA o4
8::45:'5'::'“” £ i ow »
unE






Jonathan Banberger

From: Jonathan Banberger

Sent: Monday, September 27, 2021 11:39 AM

To: ‘Dion, Shannon'; Harvey Powers

Cc: Erik Smith; 'Cotter, David'; 'Hutchins, Catherina’

Subject: Notification for File: Decertification REINSTATEMENT- Brothers 1V, Paul

Attachments: Sheriff's Notification_ Reinstatement Notification_ Brothers.pdf; Brothers_ Reinstatement

NTF Final_ SIGNED.pdf

Good morning,

For your file reference, Mr. Paul Brothers IV has been reinstated by the Executive Committee of the CJSB, pursuant to
Va. Code 15.2-1708, effective September 21, 2021.

A written notification has been sent to Mr. Brothers, with copy to Sheriff C. Balderson, Westmoreland County Sheriff’s
Office, has been sent via US Postal Certified Mail.

Copies attached.
The TREX Database notations have also been updated to reflect the reinstatement.
Please let me know if you have any additional questions.

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank St., 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804) 225-4503

Cell: (804) 551-3521

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www.dcjs.virginia.gov/subscribe
Visit us on Facebook: www.facebook.com/vadcjs and Flickr: www.flickr.com/photos/va dcjs

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:

The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or if this message has
been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this message and any attachments. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited.



Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

Criminal Justice Services Board

Executive Committee

DECERTIFICATION APPEAL HEARING

Mr. Paul Brothers IV

September 21, 2021



CODE OF VIRGINIA

NOTIFICATION FROM WESTMORELAND COUNTY SHERIFF'S
' OFFICE
AND
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

DECERTIFICATION NOTIFICATION
TO
MR BROTHERS

DECERTIFICATION APPEAL HEARING REQUESTED
BY
MR. BROTHERS

APPEAL HEARING DATE NOTIFICATION
TO
MR. BROTHERS

OFFICIAL TRAINING RECORD
AND TREX UPDATES

ADDITIONAL CONTENT:
SPECIAL INVESTIGATION REPORT




72042021 § 15.2-1707. Decertification of law-enforcement officers
72072021

Code of Virginia
Title 13.2. Counties, Cities and Towns
Chapter 7. Police and Public Order

§ 15.2-1707. Decertification of law-enforcement officers.

A. The shertiT, chief of police, or agency administrator shall notity the Criminal Justice Services Board {the Board)
in writing within 48 hours of becoming aware that any certitied law-enforcement or jail officer currently employed
by his agency has (i) been convicted of or pled guilty or no contest to a felony or any offense that would be a fetony
if committed in the Commonwealth: (ii) been convicted of or pled guilty or no contest to a Class 1 misdemeanor
involving moral turpitude or any offense that would be any misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, including but
not limited to petit larceny under § 18.2-96_ or any offense involving moral turpitude that would be a misdemeanor
if commitied in the Commomwealth; (i1i) been convicted of or pled guilty or no contest to any misdemeanor sex
offense in the Commonwealth, another state, or the United States, including but not fimited to sexual battery under §
18.2-67.4 or consensual sexual intercourse with a minor 13 years of age or older under clause (i) of § 18.2-371; (iv)
been convicted of or pled guilty or no contest to domestic assault under § 18.2-57.2 or any offense that would be
dotnestic assault under the taws of another state or the United States: (v} failed to comply with or maintain
compliance with mandated training requirements: ot (vi) refused to submit to a drug screening or has produced a
positive result on a drug screening reported 1o the employing agency, where the positive result cannot be explained
to the agency administrator’s satisfaction.

B. The sheriff, chief of police, or agency administrator shall notify the Board in writing within 48 hours if any
certified law-enforcement or jail officer currently employed by his agency (i) is terminated or resigns in advance ot
being convicted or found guilty of an offense set forth in clause (i) of subsection A that requires decertification. (ii)
is terminated or resigns in advance of a pending drug screening, (iii) is terminated or resigns for a violation of state
or federal law, (iv) is terminated or resigns for engaging in serfous misconduct as defined in statewide professional
standards of conduct adopted by the Board. (v} is terminated or resigns while such officer is the subject of a pending
internal investigation involving serious misconduct as detined in statewide professional standards of conduct
adopted by the Board, or (vi} is terminated or resigns for an act committed while in the performance of his duties
that compromises an officer’s credibility. integrity, honesty, or other characteristics that constitute exculpatory or
impeachment evidence in a criminal case.

C. The notification, where appropriate, shall be accompanied by a copy of the judgmeni of conviction.

. Upon receiving such notice from the sheriff. chief of police. or agency administrator, or from an attorney for the
Commonwealth. the Board shali immediately decertify such lavw-entorcement or jail ofticer. Such officer shall not
have the right to serve as a law-enforcement officer within the Comumonwealth untit his certification has been
reinstated by the Board.

E. When a conviction has not become final, the Board may decline 1o decertity the officer untii the conviction
becomes final, after considering the tiketihood of irreparable damage to the officer if such oficer is decertified
during the pendency of an ultimately successful appeal. the likelihood of injury or damage to the publie if the officer
is not decertified. and the sericusness of the offense. '

F. The Department of Criminal Justice Services is hereby authorized to waive the requirements for decertification as
set out in subsection A for good cause shown.

G. The Board may initiate decertification proceedings against any current or former law-enforcement or jail officer
if the Board has found that any basis for the dffficer's decertification set forth in subsection A or B exists. |

H. Any conviction of a misdemeanor that has been appealed tw a court of record shall not be considered a conviction
for purposes of this section unless a final order of conviction is entered. Any finding of miscenduct listed in

https:/flaw.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-1 707/ ‘ 112



7/20/2021 § 15.2-1707. Decertification of law-enforcement officers

subsection B will not be considered final untii all grievances or appeals have been exhausted or waived and the
finding of misconduct is made final.

1994, cc. 830, 903, § 15.F-131.8:2;: 1993, c, J12: 1997, c. 587; 2013, cc. 307, 468: 2017, c. 496; 2020, Sp. Sess. L.
ce. 27, 37,

https:/ilaw.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/15.2-1707/ ? 212



712012021 § 15.2-1708. Notice of decertification
720:2021

Code of Virginia
Title 15.2. Counties, Cities and Towns
Chapter 17. Police and Public Order

§ 15.2-1708. Notice of decertification.

A. Service of notice. The Board shall, within ten days of decertification, serve notice upon an affected officer, in
person or by certified mail. and upon the law-enforcement or jail agency employing said ofiicer, by certified mail,
specifving the action taken and remedies available. The Board shall stay final action until the period for requesting a
hearing expires.

B. Decerification hearing. Any law-enforcement or jail ofticer who has been decertified may, within thirty days of
receipt of notice served by the Board, request, by certified mail. a hearing which shall be granted by the Board.
Upon receipt of such request, the Board shall set a date, time, and place for the hearing within sixty days and serve
notice by certified mail upon the affected officer. The Board, or a committee thereof. shall conduct such hearing.
The affected officer may be represented by counsel. In the absence of a request for hearing, decertification shall,
without further proceedings. become final thirty days afier the initial notice.

C. Standard of review. The decertification of a law-enforcement or jail officer under § 15.2-1707 shall be sustained
by the Board unless such law-enforcement or jail officer shows. by a preponderance of the evidence. good cause for
his certification {o be reinstated.

D. Final decision after request tor hearing. The Board shall render a final decision within thirty days.

E. Notice of final action. The Board shail notify the officer and the law-enforcement or jail agency involved. by
certified mail, of the final action regarding decertitication.

F. Reinstatement after decertification. Any ofticer who is decertified may, atter a period of not tess than five vears,
petition the Board 10 be considered for reinstatement of certificarion.

1094, cc. 850, 905. § 15.1-131.8:3: 1995, ¢. 112 1997, ¢. 387.

j
https:/law lis.virginia.govivacodeftitle 15.2/chapter17/section15.2-1708/ 11






FOR CRIMINAL CASES: COPY OF JUDGEMENT OF CONVICTION MUST SUBMITTED WHEN AVAILABLE.

Failed ta camply with or maintain compiiance with mandated training requirements. {15.2-1707
{A}v))

Refusal to submit to a drug screening or has produced a paositive result on a drug screening
reported to the employing agency, where the pasitive resuit cannot be explained to the agency’s
satisfaction. {15.2-1707 (A){vi))

15.2-1707 {B) {effactive March 14, 2023)
FOR ALL BELOW:

DATE OF INCIDENT OR ACTIONABLE occunance: 04/03/2021
vicLation Violation of Use of Force Policy G.0.09.01

Terminated or resigns: {effective March 1%, 2021)

in advance of being convicted or found guilty of an offense as set forth in subsection (A},
clause (i) that requires decertification. {15.2-1707 {B}{i})

D in advance of a pending drug screening. {15.2-1707 (B}{ii})
Cmandad T avioiatson of state or federal law. (15.2-1707 (B)(ii)  Sph+ B, foog  AeBris

) Gjagiz4 ,
(f’,yﬁﬁ‘) * ‘ h j@or an act committed while im the performance of the officer’s duties that compromises that
compromises an officer’s credibility, integrity, honesty or other characteristics that constitute
exculpatory or impeachment evident in a criminal case. {15.2-1707 {B{vi)}

A summary of the circumstances assatiated with this cansideration must accampany this
submission. (For incidents occurring AFTER March 1, 2021.}

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Paul Lee Brothers, iV was employed as a Patrol Deputy for the Westmorefand County
Sheriff's Office on 04/03/2021. After arresting a subject for Obstruction of Justice, Mr.
Brothers was involved in a Use of Force at the Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office
Booking Room. The Use of Force was in violation of policy for the Westmareland
County Sheriff's Office G.0.09.01. The Virginia State Police was requested by this
Sheriff's Gffice to conduct an investigation and a Special Prosecutor has been
assigned to determine if the use of force rises to the level of being a criminal jaw
violation. The arrestee did suffer a laceration to the nose. Incident was recorded with
audio and video on Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office Body Cameras. If further
information is needed in regard to this incident do not hesitate to contact us.

{Attech edditional pages as needed}

Congd pate: 05 ;25,2021

Signature of Sheriff, Chief of Police or Agency Adminisiratnr

Rew 1, G5-2021

Page 2 of 2



Jonathan Banberger

From: Jonathan Banberger

Sent: Tuesday, June 29, 2021 11:57 AM
To: ‘Eric Molinares'

Cc: Erik Smith

Subject: RE: Decertification Process

Sgt Molinares,
Again, deepest sympathies to you and your family.

Per gur conversation, | will be amending the submitted DC-1 from violation of Subcategory (8)ivi) to {BY{iif). Bi¥ is more
suitable for the violation as described in the DC-1 narrative.

t am sending this notification so that you can adjust your records accordingly.

We will be proceeding with processing our paperwork.

Whe you get baci to work, please let me know it you have any additional questions or concerns.
Again, you and your family are in gur thoughis!

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinatos/ Division of aw Enforcernent
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

110G Bank St.. 9ih Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804) 225-4503

Cell:  (B04)351-3521

hitps:/iwww . dcis. virginia. cov/

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:

The confents of this ermail message and any attachments are intended solely for the addrasseeis) and may contain canfidential and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosura. if you are not tha intended recipient of this message or thsir agert, or if this message has
been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply emaii and then detets this message and any attachments. if you arg noi the
intended recipient, you are heraby nciified that any use, dissemination, copyirig, or storage of this message or s attachments is strictly prohibited.

From: lejdecert@dcjs.virginia.gov <lejdecert@dcjs.virginia.gov>
Sent: Thursday, May 6, 2021 10:29 AM

To: Eric Molinares <jemolinares@westcoso.us>

Subject: RE: Decertification Process

Good maorning Sgt Molinares,



Atiached is @ form we've created to assist agencias with submissions. it pretty much encompasses everything we
need. The only thing { emphasize if that, in the additional information sections, pleass include @ good summary of the
circumstances. | will follow-up with any guestions or need for additiona! information.

Piease let me know if you have any gquesticns.
Thanks,

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank St., th Floor

Richinond. VA 23219

Office: (BO4) 225-4563

https://www.dcis. virginia.gov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www. dois vy g
Visit us on Facebook: www. facabook condvaticss and Flickr: waww fiic v

faed

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE.

The contents of this emait message and any attachmenis are intended solely for the addresseeis) and may contain confidental and’or privilsged
information and may be legaily protected from disciosure. if you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or i this message has
been addressed {o you in error, please immediately afert the sender by reply emait and then delele this message and any attachuinents. 1 you are not the
intanded recipient, you are hareby notified that any use, dissermnination, copying. or storage of this message or its altachments is strictly prehibited,

From: Eric Molinares <igmgolinares@wesicoso, us>
Sent: Thursday, May 6, 2021 9:08 AM

To: LEldeceri@dais.virginia 2oy

Subject: Decertification Process

Good morning,

Our Agency would like to see what we need to do on our end to start the Decertification Process.
Thanks,

Eric

1% Sergeant J.E. Molinares
Administrative / Training
Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office
P.0. Box 305 / 175 Polk Street
Montross Virginia, 22520

{804} 493-8066 Office Ext: 3521
{804} 313-5013 Cell

{804} 456-7218 Celi
jemglinares@westcns0.Us
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", \irginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

&
i £ Notification of Efigibility for Decertification

O@-hﬂ "“éﬁlﬁ,

DC-1

Mg

Pursuant to § 15.2-1707 of the Cade of Virginig, this document shall serve as written notice to the Criminal

Justice Services Board of the potential efigibility for decertification of the individual listed below.

. . . e 20210525-001
Submft via Email to: lejdecert@dcis ViFginia. gov  For S ISEORLY CASED 5

nave: Paul L. Brothers, IV

wstwown aooses [ V92 22520

LAW ENFORCEMENT or JAIL CERTIFIED OFFICER; - E"O"®Me!  ATE OF BIRTH-

REQUESTING agency: Yvestmoreland Co. 8.0. point o contac: 18t Sgt. J- Molinares

DATE oF separation; 09/20/2021 Terminated or Resigned: _| €7Minated
Contact Email: JEMOIINAras@westcoso.US  contact phone: (904) 456-7218

REASON FOR DECERTIFICATION {CHECK ALL THAT APPLY/ATTACH SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS NECESSARY):

15.2-1707 (A)

D Convicted of or plead guilty or no contest to a felony of any offense that would be a felony if
committed in the Commonwealth. (15.2-1707 [A){i})

D Canvicted of or plead guilty or no contest to a Class 1 misdemeanor involving moral turpitude,
including but not limited to petit larceny, or any offense invaolving moral turpitude that would be a
misdemeanor if committed in the Commanwealth. {15.2-1707 (A)(i))

Convicted of or plead guiity or no contest ta any misdemeanor sex offense in the Commaonwealth,
another state, or the United 5tates, including but not limited to sexual battery or consensuai
sexual intercourse with a minor 15 or older. (15.2-1707 (A}iii))

Convicted of or plead guilty or no contest to domestic assault or any offense that would be
domestic assault under the laws of another state or the United States. (15.2-1707 (A){iv))

FOR ALL OF THE ABQVE:
DATE OF CONVICTION:

FINAL CRIM{NAL CHARGE(S):

COURT LOCATION:

Page1of2




FOR CRIMINAL CASES: COPY OF JUDGEMENT OF CONVICTION MUST SUBMITTED WHEN AVAILABLE.
Failed to comply with or maintain compliance with mandated training requirements, {15.2-1707
(A)v))

Refusal to submit to a drug screening or has produced a positive result on a drug screening
reported to the employing agency, where the positive result cannot be explained to the agency's
satisfaction. (15.2-1707 {A}{vi)}

15.2-1707 (B} {effective March 17, 2021}
FOR ALL BELOW:

DATE OF INCIDENT OR AcTIoNABLE occurance: 04/03/2021
viowation Violation of Use of Force Policy G.0.09.01

Terminated or resigns: (effective march 1%, 2021}

D in advance of being convicted or found guilty of an offense as set forth in subsection {A),
clause {i} that requires decertification. {15.2-1707 {B){i}}

D in advance of a pending drug screening. {15.2-1707 {B)}{ii})
D for a violation of state or federal law. {15.2-1707 {B}{iii})

for an act committed while in the performance of the officer’s duties that compromises that
compromises an officer's credibility, integrity, honesty or other characteristics that constitute
exculpatory or impeachment evident in a criminal case. (15.2-1707 (B}{vi})

A summary of the circumstances assaciated with this consideration must accompany this
submission. (For Incidents occurring AFTER March 1, 2021.)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:
{Additional Supporting Documentation may attached and must be in PDF form}

Paul Lee Brothers, IV was employed as a Patrol Deputy for the Westmoreiand County
Sheriff's Office on 04/03/2021. After arresting a subject for Obstruction of Justice, Mr,
Brothers was involved in a Use of Force at the Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office
Booking Room. The Use of Force was in violation of policy for the Westmoreland
County Sheriff's Office G.0.09.01. The Virginia State Police was requested by this
Sheriff's Office to conduct an investigation and a Special Prosecutor has been
assigned to determine if the use of force rises to the level of being a criminal law
violation. The arrestee did suffer a laceration to the nose. Incident was recorded with
audio and video on Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office Body Cameras. Hf further
information is needed in regard to this incident do not hesitate to contact us.

{Attach additional pages as néeded)

Coxal | pate: 05 ;25,2021

Signature of Sheriff, Chief of Police or Agency Administrattl!r

Rev 1. 05-2021
Page 2 of 2



Jonathan Banbert_;er i

From: Jonathan Banberger

Sent;: Wednesday, June 30, 2021 12:41 PM

To: ‘Chris Hawkins'

Cc: 'Smith, Erik’; "Eric Molinares'

Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Attachments: 20210525-0071 DC-1_Brothers IV, Paul L, _Amended_JDB 06-29-2021.pdf
Absolutely.

Please see attached! The notification email sent to 1% Sgt. Molinares is included.

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Deceritfication Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank §t., 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (8043 225-4503

Cell:  (804)551-3521

https://www.dcis.virginia.gov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www.dcjs. virginia. gov/subscribe
Visit us on Facebook: wwnw. facebook comivadcis and Flickr: wawww flickr.corn/phofos/ya _deis

CONFIDENTIAUTY NOTICE:

The contents of this email message and any allachmenis are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confident:al and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure. if you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or if this message has
been addressed {0 you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this message and any attachments. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or its attachments is stricily prohibited.

From: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcoso.us>

Sent: Wednesday, June 30, 2021 12:32 PM

To: Jonathan Banberger <jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov>
Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Sir,
| just talked to the sheriff about your conversation. He is requesting that you email me a copy of the final form for the

Decertification of Paul Brothers for our file. We want to make sure we have the changes made on file in case it is
appealed. A scanned and emailed copy will work fine. '

Thank you,

Major Hawkins
Westmoreland County Sheriff's Office



From: Jonathan Banberger [mailto:jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov]

Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 8:34 AM

To: Chris Hawkins <chawkins @westcoso.us>

Cc: lohn Hoover <chiefdeputy @westcoso.us>; Erik Smith <erik.smith@dcjs.virginia.gov>
Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Thanks for the update. 1t will ultimately help in determining if we can move forward under the newer additions to the
code if applicable, or wait until the outcome of a potential court process.

In advance, we appreciate any additional information that can be provided.

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank St., 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804) 225-4503

Cell:  (804)551-352]

hitps://www.dcjs.virginia.cov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www.dcjs. virginia.gov/subscribe
Visit us on Facebook: www.facebook.com/vadejs and Flickr: www.flickr.com/photos/va_dois

CONFIDENTIALITY NCTICE:

The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confidential and/er privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure. iIf you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or i this message has
been addressed {o you in efrar, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this message and any attachments. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or its attachments is striclly prohibited.

From: Chris Hawkins <chawkins @westcoso.us>

Sent: Tuesday, Jupe 22, 2021 12:44 PM

To: lonathan Banberger <jgnathan.banberger@dcis.virginia.gov>
Cc: John Hoover <chiefdeputy@westcoso.us>

Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Sir,

i have Cc'd our Chief Deputy in this email. We are still waiting on the special prosecutor to render a decision as to
prosecution. Mr, Brothers is no longer employed here but the Chief Deputy would have to decide what to release in
consultation with the Commonwealth’s Attorney.

Major Hawkins

From: Jlonathan Banberger {mailto:jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 9:53 AM

To: Jonathan Banberger <jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov>; Chris Hawkins <chawkins @westcoso.us>
Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers !

Good merning,



| am following up with you in regard to the Brothers matter. Can you advise if there have been any charges by V5P or
the special prosecutor?

Also, can you provide a summary of the incident that prompted your agency to take action? | will need the supporting
documentation for file in order to establish the criteria for the specific Decertification section application. Especially if
an appeal is made.

Thanks,

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank St., 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804)225-4503

Cell:  (804) 551-3521

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: wwyv.dgis virginia. gov/subscrbe
Visit us on Facebook: www facehook comivadcis and Flickr: www.flickr comyphotos/va_dcis

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:

The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee{s) and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure, if you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent. or if this message has
been addressed {o you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply email and then delete this message and any aftachments. If you are not the
intended recipient. you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited.

From: Jonathan Banberger <jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 8:58 AM

To: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcoso.us>

Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Good morning,

We have received your DC-1 submission for Mr. Brothers. 1 will create a file for this matter and follow-uo with you
regarding any additional information if necessary.

Please keep me posted on if charges are obtained in this matter.
Best Regards,

Jon Banberger :

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

F100 Bank St., 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804) 225-4503

Cell:  (804) 551-3521

https://www.dcis.virginia.cov/




For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www.dois. vitginia.gov/subscribe
Visit us on Facebook: www.facebook comivadcis and Flickr: vwaww. flickr com/phofessva_dejs

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:

The contents of this email message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipieni of this message or their agent, or if this message has
been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply emaii and then delete this message and any attachments. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying, or storage of this message or ils atlachmenis is strictly prohibited.

From: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcoso.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 25, 2021 3:31 PM

To; lejdecert@dcjs.virginia.gov

Subject: Decert Form Paul Brothers




Jonathan Banberger

From: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcoso.us> on behalf of Chris Hawkins
Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 2:35 PM

To: Jonathan Banberger

Subject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

The prosecutor has declined prosecution on Paui Brothers

From: Jonathan Banberger fmailto:jonathan.banberger@dcjs.virginia.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 8:58 AM

To: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcoso.us>

Suhject: RE: Decert Form Paul Brothers

Good morning,

We have received your DC-1 submission for Mr. Brothers. | will create a fiie for this matter and follow-uo with you
regarding any additional information if necessary.

Please keep me posted on if charges are obtained in this matter.
Best Regards,

Jon Banberger

Law Enforcement Decertification Coordinator/ Division of Law Enforcement
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services

1100 Bank St.. 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Office: (804) 225-4503

Cell:  (804)351-3521

htips://'www.dcjs.virginia.gov/

For up to date information, subscribe to DCJS Updates: www.dcjs. virginia.gov/suhscribe
Visit us on Facebook: wiww.facehook comivadejs and Flickr: www.flickr.com/oholos/va_dgis

CONFIDENTIALITY NQOTICE:

The contents of this email message and any attachmenis are intended solely for the addressee(s} and may corttain condidential and/or privileged
information and may be legally protected from disclosure. if you are not the intended recipient of this message or their agent, or if this message has
been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply emaif and then delete this message and any aitachments. if you are nat the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, copying. or storage of this message or its attachments is strictly prohibited.

From: Chris Hawkins <chawkins@westcdso.us>
Sent: Tuesday, May 25, 2021 3:31 PM

To: leidecert@dcis.virginia.gov

Subject: Decert Form Paul Brothers










COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Department of Criminal Justice Services

Shanncn Dion ‘Washington Buikding
Director 1100 Bank Street

Richmend, Yirginia 23219
Megan Peterson {3043 766-4000
Chisf Deputy Director W dejs virginia.gov

June 30, 2021

Sheriff C. Balderson

Westmoreland County Sheriff’s Office
99 Court Square

P.O. Box 305

Montross, VA. 22520

Dear Chief Burke,

Please find the enclosed agency file copy of documents providing notification of
decertification to the following individuals:

- Mr. Paul J. Brothers IV

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (804) 225-4503 or via email at
(jonathan.banbergeri@dcijs.virginia.gov).

Sincerely,

Jon Banberger

Decertification Coordinator

Law Enforcement Division

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Service



Juty 2%, 2021

Shannon Dion

Director, Department of Criminat Justice Serv:ceﬁ
1100 Bank Street

Richmond, VA 23219

- Re: Reguest for Hearing
- Dear Ms. Shannon,

- ﬂn July 8, 2021, | received your letter dated june 30, 2021 adwsmg me o! the pending

decertification of my law-enforcement credentials. This fetter serves 25 formal notice of my request fora’
: heartng pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-1708.  will be represented by caunsnl Mv attomey’s tontact
informahon isas foliows:

© Andrew Meyer
P.0. Box 14543
Richmond, VA 13221
{804} 358-2309 phone
"{757) 418-4151 facsimiie
'ameyer@amgyér(aw.com :

" please schedule the hearing through my attorney. Thank you for yaur time and attentlon,

- sincer

~Paul Brothers '




Jonathan Banberger

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Andrew Meyesr <ameyene
Wednesday, August

jonathan anberger
Re Paul Brothears IV DOIS Appeal

P15t AM

neyerlaw (om s on behaif of Androw Meyes
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contact the sender by reply ¢-mail. destron all copios o the oviginal message. and do not disseminare it farther.
I vou are the intended recipient but do not wish o receive conmmuaications through this medam, please
advise the sender immediateds,

Andrew B, Moyver, Usq.

1203 West Main Streer, Suife 264

Richmond. Virginia 23220
(803 3382900

S R,
CAIEED WMRUSaNg

CONFIDENTRALITY NOTICE: T ipclading sttachments, sV any, 5 inended ondy for The person o eality 16 wingh
it s addressed and may contuin contidental amd or privileged matevial Any dmanthorized rovien | wse, disclosure or distribution i
prohibited, i vou are not the intended revipient, please contact the seider by rophy el destron all copios of the voginal message,
and do not dissemdnaie # futher. I you arc the Brended soopient i du pot wesh o recoive commugaaations threugh this medium,
please advise the sender immediately '
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Forwarded

August 4, 2021 at 10:32 am
RICHMOND, VA
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Remove X
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Tracking History N

August 4, 2021, 10:32 am

Forwarded

RICHMOND, VA |
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Arrived at Post Office
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Depaited Past Office
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The Honarabie Julia M. Sichio}
August 18, 2021

Page 2

911 Call
The 911 call reveais the fpilowing:

1

Mrs. Frenziey calls 911 for assistance because her son, justin, has paranoid schizophrenia and is
having an “episode.”

Nrs. Freneley states that Justin’s Father is “not in the best af statas oithers”

Yelfing can be heard in the background during the cail.

Bady Warn Camera {8WC) and Dashcam Videa

BWC and Dashtam video was submitted from Deputies Taylor Shacklefard, Dilion Jackson, Thomas
Jackson, and Paul Brothers. The iotality and combination of the various BWC videos from the variaus
perspectives show the following:

bl

Deputy Brothers and Deputy Jackson arrive at the scene at approsimately 10:10 p.m.

Mrs. Frentley receives deputies at the front door and permits them into the hame.

Deputy Jackson approaches justin, whg is in the kitchen area.

Deputy Brothers moves toward Mr. Frenziey who is faying down oa a sofa in a living room area.
Justin, whose mental health issue was the original basis of the 911 cail, appears highly agitated
and is hesitant about complying with Deputy lackson’s instructions. Justin's speech, behavior and
movement are consistent with someone experiencing a mental heakth crisis,

Mirs. Frenziey states that justin is having a bad episade and that the My, Frentley Uiggered it.

Al one point, Mr, Frenziey announces, “Al of ya'il know me and { don’t take no shit.” Mrs. Frenziay
mentions that Justin is 3 paranoid schizophrenic who is prescribed medication. in front of the
deputies, she announces oul loud towards Mr, Frenzicy, “You are schizophrenic, but you are not
on medication,”

Depuly Brathers steps into the kitchen to check on Deputy Jackson and justin. Mr. Frenziey begins
yelling that Justin should not iet the deputies appreach him. Inaudible yelling can be heard it the
background, and Deputly Brothers yeils, “Can you shut-up, thank you.” Mr. Frenzley shouts, “This
is my house,” to which Deputy Brothers respands, "{am here, and | am iaking control of the scene,
$0 you are going to sit back and shut your mauth. You understand me?” Deputy Brothers further
warns Mr. franziey that he will be placed in handcuffs next time. While addressing Mr. Frenziey,
Deputy Brothers moves from the kitchen back to the bving room. After delivering his warning,
Deputy Brothers returns to the kitchen.

Mirs. frenzley and My, Frenzley can be heard yelling at each other. Mrs. Frenziey comments that
M. Franziey woke up drinking this morning by having 3 haif pint af vodka. Althgugh not entirely
ciear from the audio of the BWC recording, Mr. Frenzley seems to state that, ! will kill that white
boy”. Deputy Brothers, reacting, says, “Excuse me, did you say that you'll kit a2 white boy?” and
heads back into the living room. Deputy Brathers asks Mr. Frenziey whether he just threatened
a law enforcement officer, to which Mz. Frenzley responds that he did not say that. Deputy
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1Q.

12,

11,

14,

15.

Brothers tells Mr. Frenzlsy that he is “asking to go to jai tonight.”  As Ceputy Brothers raturns to
the kitchen, Mrs. Frendey can be heard asking Mr. Frenzley, "What's wroang with you?”

Mrs, Frenzley enters the kitchen and begins discussing Justin’s medications. Mr. Frengley can oe
seen standing behind Mrs. Frenzicy and, due to his easiier antics, Deputy Brothers immediately
telis him ta sit back down as he starts watking toward him. Depuly Brothers states, “You ain't
listening” as he begins attempting to handcuff Mr. Frenzley. Deputy Brothers explains that you
are going in handcuffs “"because you squaring-up on me.” Mrs. Frenzley can be heard yeiling,
“Why couldn’l you just sit and be quiet? We trying to help cur son.” Al this point, Mr. Frenziey
is taken outside in handculls by Deputy Brothers. When M¢. Frenzley is told that he is being
detained, he responds, "Fuck yout”

. Once outside, Mr. Frenziey mutters under his breath and Deputy Brothers calls for mare units,

Justin can ba heard yelting in the house and ultimately comes out and starts yelling at Deputy
Brothers. Mrs. Frenzley and the deputies taik to each othes and to Justin, Lrying to caim him
down. Deputy Brothers is calm while speaking with justin, who is still upset. When Justin
expresses concern about his father, Deputy Brothers explains that he is being detained because
he was too aggressive. Mrs. Frenzley adds that "He" {seemingiy referring to Mr. Frenzley} was
going to kil the white boy.” Mr. Frenzley is out of frame for a while as the deputies persuade
Justin 1o go to the hospital.

As the deputies are finishing with Justin, Depuly Brothers comments to the others about Mr.
Frengley by saying, “i am getting ready to tat him out. Obstruction is really it and thal is pushing
it. He just needed to be detained.” An unnamed deputy asks about the use of force and Deputy
Brothers responds that he used an arm bar. Deputy Brothers appears to be preparing to release
W, Frenziey, when two other deputies provide information about Mr. Frenziey's past actions. A
deputy who agpears 10 be a supervisor teils Deputy Brothers to “do i, meaning arrest Mr,
Frenziey.

Before taking Mr. Frenzley to the jail, Deputy Brothers attempts to loosen the handcuffs because
Mr. Frenzioy has scresmed that his handculfs are too tight. it is obscured on the BWE, but as he
approaches e loosen the handculfs, Deputy Brothers reprmands W, Frenziey for attempting to
kick him. As the handcuffs are being 'oosened, Mr. Frenziey calis Deputy Brothers sevara! names
such as “dirty cop”, “smartass’, “a piece of shit”, and “redneck motherfucker”. As Daputy
Brothers pulls off, Mrs. Frenziey thanks him.

During the ride 10 the jail, Mr. Frenzley continues a patiern of muttering to himself, and taiking
to/yelting at Deputy Brothers, who doas not respond. Mr. Trenriey’s speech is slurred, and he
repeats himseif often. At one point he says, “I'm gonna Juck you up. You put your hands on my
son, and I'm gonna fuck you up. You disrespected me in my own home. ¥'m gonna fuck you up.”
Once they arrive at the jail, Deputy Brothers warms Mr. Frenziey that when he opens the ¢ar door,
he will be put to the ground “fast and hard” if he makes any aggressive moves towatd him. Mr.
Frenzley responds, *'m gonna whip your 8ss.” As he is walked into the jail, Mr. Frenziey continues
o curse and calt Deputy Brothers names.,
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16.

17.

19,

Once In the holding area, Deputy Brothers tells Mr. Frenziey that when his hand is released from
the handcuff, he will be dealt with if he acts aggressively. Deputy Brothers handcuffs one of Mr.
Frenziey's hands to a metal bench.

Mr. Frenzley next spends approximately 1,5 hours handcuffed 1o the bench while waiting for a
magistrate. Deputy Brothers watches from across the room. At times, Mr, Frenziey yells and
curses and makes Ehreats at Depuly Brothers. At ather times, Mr. Freazley mutters Lo himsell or
sits quietly. At one point while teifing anather deputy what happened, Mr. Frenzley says, "t will
whip your ass”, although it is not specificatly made clear who he is talking about. Thraughout this
periad, M. Frenzley makes a series of threats to Deputy Brothers. Some examples of those
threats include: "} hope your momma and daddy die cause you are a rotten motherfucker,” "Punk-
ass motherfucker,” “1I hate you, i'm gonna get you.” “I'm gonea get you cause you're crooked,”
“you belter watch gut for me far the rest of your fife”. This period included severai cycles of Mr.
Frenzley sitting guietly and/or speaking calmiy followed by periods of yefiing, cuising, and
thrashing about. Throughout this period, Mr. Frenzley showed signs of intoxication, namely,
siusred speech, speaking incoherenlly at times, and much repetition.

. After around 1.5 hours, Mr. Frenziey is seen by Lhe magistrate on video and given a $60C0 secured

bond {52000 far each of his 3 disorderly charges). After hearing tnat he was being held, Mr.
Frenzley became animated and irate and began cursing again. He ended his tirade by yeliing “Fuck
you”, several times 10 the magistrate. Subsequentiy, the magislrate toid Mr. Frenziey that
because of his outburst, he was having him held withoul bond until he saw a judge.

Al the conclusion of the magistrate’s hearing, Depuly Brathers began preparing to move Mr.
Frenzley out of the holding area. For 3 short period, Depuly Brothers feaves Mr. Frenzley &s
another deputy watches him. During this time, Mr. Frenziey is aying silent on the bench, and for
a period of time repeatedly thrusting his chained arm into the air. Although Deputy Brathers ks
not initiaily in the waiting area when the arm thrusting occurs, the clanging of the chain can be
heard even after Deputy Brothers is autside of the room.

20. When Depiity Brathers returns to the waiting area, Mr. Frenzley is still thrusting his arm inio the

21,

air, but he caims down when Deputy Brothers sits down for a minute or twa. Deputy Brothers
and Deputy Shackieford then watk toward Mr, Frenzley, and Deputy Brothers tells him that he is
going to remove his handcuffs and place him into another pair. Depuly Brothers warns him that
if he “tries anything”, then it “will not go good for him®. When the cuff is removed, Mr. Frenziey
pulis his arm back whife making a fist, then slowly lets his arm down. Deputy Hrothers quickly
turns Mr. Frenziey stightly and pushes him down to the ground and handcuffs his hand behind his
back.

Blood can be seen coming from Nr. Frenzley's head, and he immediately indicates that he is hurt.
Deputy Brothers feans on M. Frendey’s back/side with his knee and shin as he and Deputy
Shackleford secure his wrists in handcuffs. Once Mr. Frenziey is secured, Deputy Brothers:
immediately requests medical aid for him,
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Medicat Records for George Frenziay

Foliowing the incident at the jail, George Frenziey was treated at Mary Washington Hospital. He
remained uncooperative with medical staff. He was diagnosed with a singie non-displaced rib fracture,
feft L2-3 transverse process fractures, nose abrasion, broken tooth and left back tontusion. His blood
alcohot leve! was 265.0 mg/dL. That is the equivalent of a blood alcohol concentration of .265 percent by
weight by volume, approximately three tiines the legat limit for a driving while intoxicated charge. He was
discharged that night back inta the custody of the jail.

Interviews of George and Gail Frenziey

Mrs. Freniziey's statement does not contaip many detaiis of what occurred in the home that night.
She states that she was in the back packing Justin’s bag when she heard Mr. Frenziey and Depuly Brothers
“having words.” Aithough not admitted in her statement, the BWC shows that Mrs. Frenziey was in the
raom for most of the incident between her husband and Ceputy Brothers in the home. Her slatement
does not reflect any of her negative comments made to or about Mr. Frenzley that were captured on the
BwC.

several portions of Mr. Frenziey's statement also do not match the BWC. Mr. Frendey's
statement greatly minimizes his responsibility for Deputy Brothers’ reactions 1o him, His statement that
he was not yelfling or inciting his san is contradicted by the BWC. Mr. Frenzley believes that Deputy
Brothers purposely acted in a way to cause his injuries.  Initiaily, Mr. Frenziey stated that he did not
remember pulling back his arm after the handcuff came off. After seeing, the video, he stated that such
micvement was to circidale bicod in his arm. This does not ring true since Mr. Frenzley's arm, aithough
cutfed, had not been heid immaobiie.

Analysis : nclusion

While a significant bady of case law exists regarding the fawfuiness and criminal responsibility of
a law enforcement oificer's use of deadly force, litle o no caselaw exists tor the use of lesser levels of
farce. To determine whether a law enforcement officer’s use of force is fawlui, we must turn to the
Constitution,

The Fourth Amendment prohibits police from using excessive force "in the course of making an
arrest, investigatory stop, or other seizure of his person.” See Grahom v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386, at 388,
{1989); Jones v. Buchanan, 325 F.3d 520, 527 {4th Cir. 2003} {"The Fourth Amendment prohibition on
unreasonable seizures bars police officers from using excessive force to seize a free citizen). Once an
indivigual has been arrested and is awaiting an adjudication of guilt as a “pretrial detainee”, the
Eourteenth Amendment prohibits police from using excessive lorce "“that amounts to punishment.'”
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Kingsiey v. Hendrickson, 576 U.5. 389, 135 5. Ct. 2466, 2473, 192 L.Ed.2d 415 {2015} {quating Graham, 490
U.S. at 395 n.10, 109 5. Ct. 1865}

A claim of excessive force by police during an arrest or investigalory stop is properly analyzed
under the Fourth Amendment by 2 determination of whether the officer's conduct was “objectively
reasonable.” Henry v. Purnell, 652 F.3d 524, 531 14th Cir. 2011} {quoting Groham, 430 U.S. at 397, 169 S,
C1. 1B85); see also Kingsley, 576 U.S. at ___ , 135 5. Ct. 9t 2473 {finding that excessive force ciaims under
the Faurieenth Amendment, just Hike excessive force claims under the Fourth Amendment, were properly
analyzed under a standard of objective reasonableness).

Whitley v. Albers, 435 U.S5. 312 {1986} and Farmer . Brenner, 511 U.5. 825 (1994}, are both cases
dealing with monetary ciaims by injured inmates. These cases reason that a "lorce analysis” should
consider whether force was applied in 3 good faith effort to maintain and/or restore discipline as
contrasted by force applied maliciously and sadistically to cause harm, Within the backdrop of Eighth
Amendment violations, the case law explains that factors Lo consider inciude: the extent of any Injury; an
evaluation of the need for force; the refationship between the need far force ang the amount of force
used; the threat leve! as reasonably perceived by the jailor; and efforts made to temper the severily of
the force used. Later cases added Lhe premise that the use of force can conslitute cruef and unusus!
punishment even when the inmate daes not suffer serious injury. See Hudson v. McMillion, 503 US 1
{1992).

in the present case, looking at the totality of the circumstances, it is objectively reasanable for
Deputy Brothers to believe that the use of force was necessary. The deputy is confronted with a just
uncuffed arrestee who is intoxicated, confrontational, having made numercus threats of physical force
against him, having seemingly aiready tried to kick him, and then puliing back a fisted hand in a
threatening manner. While Mr. Frenziey did begin to put down his arm, there are no other objective signs
of expected compliance or abandonment of the intent to potentially act out aggressively toward the
officer. Thus, it cannot bie said that Deputy Brothers' decision $o use force was unfawful.

The next part of the eguation is whether Deputy Brothers used excessive force on or assauited
Mr, Frenzley. This Report is notintended to comment on the wisdom of Deputy Brothers being the officer
to remove the handcuffs from Mr. Frenziey. it may also be argued that Deputy Brathers could have acied
differently or waited before his use of force. However, those are assessmenls outside the scope of this
Report. Additionally, his actions should not be reviewed in 3 vacuum, and all the circumstances leading
to the incident must be considered. First, the initial scenario faced by Deputy Brothers must be
considered. The cali was to caim an adult male who was having a mental heaith issue. Upon arriving on
scene, Deputy Brothers would have noticed Justin's large stature, which could have become an issue if
things became physical. Aimost immediately, it would have been apparent that Mr. Frenzley appeated
intoxicated. Mrs. Frenziey confirmed that possibllity when she stated that Mr. Frenziey had been drinking
vodhka, Deputy Brothers also heard Mrs. Frenzley say that Mr. Frenzley is schizophrenic and not on
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Jonathan Banberger

From: Chyis Senith <¢smith@westcoso.us> on behalf of Chus Smith
Sent; Wednesday, September 15, 2021 2:08 M

To: jonathan banberger@oosvrgmia.goy

Subject: Paul Brothers Hearing

Attachments: CA's investigation.pdf

Mr. Banberger,

Attached to this email is the Special Prosecutor’s full report referencing Paui Brother's Use of Force. if there is arything
else you need please et me know.

Respectfully Submitted,

tiettenant .M. Smith &5
wWaesimoreland County Sheriff's Office
Phone: {804} 493-8066

Ceil. {8047 456-5580

Fax; {304} 493-8715

Email: csmith@westcose. us
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Appellant’s Exhibit Book

Westmoreland County
Sherift’s Office

In Re: Paul Brothers



-Senior Deputy Brothers, -~ - - i

‘Return all issued umforms and equlpment to the shenff’s ofﬁce immedlatelv for Inventory. Any |tems
“not returned or that are damaged/destroyed unless due,to normal wear and tear shall be renmbursed

—_— — - -_— - -— - - - - -
. ': - - E . f ;

Sheriff C. O. Balderson (i
Westmoreland County Sherlff ’s Office .

A Siate Accredtled Law Enfarcemen! Agency '_ L

To: Senior Deputy Paul Brothers =,
From: C.O. Balderson, Sheriff w/

Reference: Termination oprpogntmem_- o

Upon considerabie review and evaluatton of a recent incident your service with the West:rnoreland
County Sheriff’s Ofﬁce is terminated effectrve Thursday, May 20 2021. T T EAE P

by you.
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OFFICE OF THE
COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY FOR HENRICO COUNTY ¥

Shannon L. Taylor
Commonwealth’s Attorney

August 18, 2021

The Honorable julia H. Sichol

Commonwealth’s Attorney for Westmoreland County
George D. English Building

175 Poik St., Door 256

P.O. Box 967

Montross, VA 22520

in Re: Incident Number 202100260

Endd o
Deary 7 Sighol,

This Office was asked to review Incident Number 202100260, which occurred on April 3, 2021,
between Deputy Paul Brothers, Sr. and George Frenzley Jr., after his arrest at 378 Grainery Road,
Montross, Virginia, and offer a legal opinion as to whether excessive force was used and whether Deputy
Brothers committed a criminal act. Please accept this letter as the Final Report for this matter.

The incident began when Mrs. Gail Frenzley telephoned 911 for help with her adult son, Justin
Frenzley, who was in the midst of a mental health crisis. Deputies Paul Brothers and Dillon Jackson, both
from the Westmoreland County Sheriff's Department, were dispatched to the home. Deputy Jackson
dealt primarily with Justin Frenzley, while Deputy Brothers engaged the parents, Mr. and Mrs. Frenziey.
Circumstances led Deputy Brothers to detain Mr. Frenzley in handcuffs and ultimately arrest him for
obstruction of justice. After his arrest, Mr. Frenzley was transported to the Sheriff's Office and held in a
holding area for approximately 1.5 hours. In preparation to be transported to the jail, Deputy Brothers
and Deputy Shackleford attempted to change Mr. Frenzley’'s handcuffs. During the exchange, certain
actions by Mr. Frenzley led Deputy Brothers to take him to the ground before re-cuffing him. The
takedown caused Mr. Frenzley to receive injuries to his face and ribs.

The materials reviewed for this investigation included: the initial 911 calt recording; Body Worn
Camera and Dashcam videos; Deputy Brothers’ Incident Report, including a Confidential Suppiement;
medical records for Mr. Frenzley, and interviews of Mr. and Mrs. Frenzley, conducted on June 3, 2021.

4301 East Parham Road, Henrico, Virginia 23228 ~ P.O. Box 90775, Henrico, Virginia 23273-0775
Telephone: (804) 501-4218 ~ Fax; (804) 501-4110 or 5028
Juvenife & Domestic Div.: {804) 501-4338 ~ VictimWitness Program: {804) 501-1680
Website: www.henrico.us/com-alty



. EEEEEEREEEEERNE RN E N EFREE R E R NERN EF X X

The Honorabie Julia H. Sichol
August 18, 2021

Page 2

911 Call

The 911 call reveals the foilowing:

L

Mrs. Frenzley calls 911 for assistance because her son, Justin, has paranoid schizophrenia and is
having an "episode.”

Mrs. Frenzley states that Justin’s Father is “not in the best of states either.”

Yelling can be heard in the background during the call.

Body Worn Camera [BWC) and Dashcam Video

BWC and Dashcam video was submitted from Deputies Taylor Shackleford, Dillon Jackson, Thomas
Jackson, and Paul Brothers. The totality and combination of the various BWC videos from the various
perspectives show the following:

Il

Deputy Brothers and Deputy Jackson arrive at the scene at approximately 10:10 p.m.

Mrs. Frenzley receives deputies at the front door and permits them into the home.

Deputy Jackson approaches Justin, who is in the kitchen area.

Deputy Brothers moves toward Mr. Frenzley who is laying down on a sofa in a living room area.
Justin, whose mental health issue was the original basis of the 911 call, appears highly agitated
and is hesitant about complying with Deputy Jackson’s instructions, Justin’s speech, behavior and
movement are consistent with someone experiencing a mental health crisis.

Mrs. Frenzley states that Justin is having a bad episode and that the Mr. Frenzley triggered it.

At one point, Mr. Frenzley announces, “All of ya’ltknow me and | don’t take no shit.” Mrs. Frenzley
mentions that Justin is a paranoid schizophrenic who is prescribed medication. In front of the
deputies, she announces out loud towards Mr. Frenzley, “You are schizophrenic, but you are not
on medication.”

Deputy Brothers steps inte the kitchen to check on Deputy Jackson and Justin. Mr. Frenzley begins
yelling that Justin should not let the deputies approach him. Inaudible yelling can be heard in the
background, and Deputy Brothers yelis, “Can you shut-up, thank you.” Mr. Frenzley shouts, “This
is my house,” to which Deputy Brothers responds, “i am here, and fam taking control of the scene,
s0 you are going to sit back and shut your mouth, You understand me?” Deputy Brothers further
warns Mr. Frenzley that he will be ptaced in handcuffs next time. While addressing Mr. Frenzley,
Deputy Brothers moves from the kitchen back to the living room. After delivering his warning,
Deputy Brothers returns to the kitchen.

Mrs. Frenzley and Mr. Frenzley can be heard yelling at each other. Mrs, Frenziey comments that
Mr. Frenzley woke up drinking this morning by having a half pint of vodka. Although not entirely
clear from the audio of the BWC recording, Mr. Frenziey seems to state that, “I will kill that white
boy”. Deputy Brothers, reacting, says, “Excuse me, did you say that you'll kill a white boy?” and
heads back into the living room. Deputy Brothers asks Mr. Frenzley whether he just threatened
a law enforcement officer, to which Mr. Frenzley responds that he did not say that. Deputy
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10.

1.

12,

13,

14,

15,

Brothers tells Mr. Frenzley that he is “asking to go to jafl tonight.” As Deputy Brothers returns to
the kitchen, Mrs, Frenzley can be heard asking Mr. Frenzley, “What's wrong with you?”

Mrs. Frenzley enters the kitchen and begins discussing Justin’s medications. Mr. Frenzley can be
seen standing behind Mrs. Frenziey and, due to his earlier antics, Deputy Brothers immediately
tells him to sit back down as he starts walking toward him. Deputy Brothers states, “You ain't
listening” as he begins attempting to handcuff Mr. Frenziey. Deputy Brothers explains that you
are going in handcuffs “because you squaring-up on me.” Mrs. Frenzley can be heard yeiling,
“Why couldn’t you just sit and be quiet? We trying to help our son.” At this point, Mr. Frenzley
is taken outside in handcuffs by Deputy Brothers. When Mr. Frenzley is told that he is being
detained, he responds, “Fuck youl”

Once outside, Mr. Frenzley mutters under his breath and Deputy Brothers calls for more units.
Justin can be heard yelling in the house and ultimately comes out and starts yelling at Deputy
Brothers. Mrs. Frenziey and the deputies talk to each other and to Justin, trying to calm him
down. Deputy Brothers is calm while speaking with Justin, who is still upset. When Justin
expresses concern about his father, Deputy Brothers explains that he is being detained because
he was too aggressive. Mrs. Frenzley adds that “He” {seemingly referring to Mr. Frenziey} was
going to kill the white boy.” Mr. Frenzley is out of frame for a while as the deputies persuade
Justin to go to the hospital.

As the deputies are finishing with Justin, Deputy Brothers comments to the others about Mr.
Frenziey by saying, “| am getting ready to let him out. Obstruction is really it and that is pushing
it. He just needed to be detained.” An unnamed deputy asks about the use of force and Deputy
Brothers responds that he used an arm bar. Deputy Brothers appears to be preparing to release
Mr. Frenzley, when two other deputies provide information about Mr. Frenziey's past actions. A
deputy who appears to be a supervisor tells Deputy Brothers to “do it,” meaning arrest Mr.
Frenzley.

Before taking Mr. Frenzley to the jail, Deputy Brothers attempts to loosen the handcuffs because
Mr. Frenziey has screamed that his handcuffs are teo tight. it is obscured on the BWC, but as he
approaches to foosen the handcuffs, Deputy Brothers reprimands Mr. Frenziey for attempting to
kick him. As the handcuffs are being loosened, Mr, Frenzley calls Deputy Brothers several names
such as “dirty cop”, “smartass”, “a piece of shit”, and “redneck motherfucker”. As Deputy
Brothers pulls off, Mrs. Frenzley thanks him.

During the ride to the jail, Mr. Frenzley continues a pattern of muttering to himself, and talking
to/yelling at Deputy Brothers, who does not respond. Mr. Frenziey's speech is slurred, and he
repeats himself often. At one point he says, “I'm gonna fuck you up. You put your hands on my
son, and ¥m gonna fuck you up. You disrespected me in my own home, I'm gonna fuck you up.”
Once they arrive at the jail, Deputy Brothers warns Mr. Frenziey that when he opens the car door,
he will be put to the ground “fast and hard” if he makes any aggressive moves toward him. Mr.
Frenzley responds, “i’'m gonna whip your ass.” As he is walked into the jail, Mr. Frenzley continues
to curse and calf Deputy Brothers names.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

Once in the holding area, Deputy Brothers tells Mr. Frenzley that when his hand is released from
the handcuff, he will be dealt with if he acts aggressively. Deputy Brothers handcuffs one of Mr.
Frenzley’s hands to a metal bench.

Mr. Frenzley next spends approximately 1.5 hours handcuffed to the bench while waiting for a
magistrate. Deputy Brothers watches from across the room. At times, Mr. Frenzley yells and
curses and makes threats at Deputy Brothers. At other times, Mr, Frenziey mutters to himself or
sits quietly. At one point while telling another deputy what happened, Mr. Frenzley says, “I will
whip your ass”, although it is not specifically made clear who he is tatking about. Throughout this
period, Mr. Frenzley makes a series of threats to Deputy Brothers. Some examples of those
threats inciude: “} hope your momma and daddy die cause you are a rotten motherfucker,” “Punk-
ass motherfucker,” “I hate you, I'm gonna get you,” “I'm gonna get you cause you're crooked,”
“You better watch out for me for the rest of your life”. This period included several cycles of Mr,
Frenzley sitting quietly and/or speaking calmly followed by periods of yelling, cursing, and
thrashing about. Throughout this period, Mr. Frenziey showed signs of intoxication, namely,
slurred speech, speaking incoherently at times, and much repetition.

After around 1.5 hours, Mr. Frenziey is seen by the magistrate on video and given a $6000 secured
bond {52000 for each of his 3 disorderly charges). After hearing that he was being held, Mr.
Frenzfey became animated and irate and began cursing again. He ended his tirade by yelling “Fuck
you”, several times to the magistrate. Subsequently, the magistrate told Mr. Frenziey that
because of his outburst, he was having him hefd without bond until he saw a judge.

At the conclusion of the magistrate’s hearing, Deputy Brothers began preparing to move Mr.
Frenzley out of the holding area. For a short period, Deputy Brothers leaves Mr. Frenzley as
another deputy watches him. During this time, Mr. Frenzley is laying silent on the bench, and for
a period of time repeatedly thrusting his chained arm into the air. Although Deputy Brothers is
not initially in the waiting area when the arm thrusting occurs, the clanging of the chain can be
heard even after Deputy Brothers is outside of the room.

When Deputy Brothers returns to the waiting area, Mr. Frenzley is still thrusting his arm into the
air, but he caims down when Deputy Brothers sits down for a minute or two. Deputy Brothers
and Deputy Shackleford then walk toward Mr. Frenzley, and Deputy Brothers tells him that he is
going to remove his handcuffs and place him into another pair. Deputy Brothers warns him that
if he “tries anything”, then it “will not go good for him”. When the cuff is removed, Mr. Frenzley
pulls his arm back while making a fist, then slowly ifets his arm down. Deputy Brothers quickly
turns Mr. Frenzley slightly and pushes him down to the ground and handcuffs his hand behind his
back.

Blood can be seen coming from Mr. Frenzley’s head, and he immediately indicates that he is hurt.
Deputy Brothers feans on Mr. Frenziey’s back/side with his knee and shin as he and Deputy
Shackleford secure his wrists in handcuffs. Once Mr. Frenzley is secured, Deputy Brothers
Immediately requests medicai aid for him.
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Medical Records for George Frenziey

Following the incident at the jail, Gecrge Frenzley was treated at Mary Washington Hospital. He
remained uncooperative with medical staff. He was diagnosed with a single non-displaced rib fracture,
left L2-3 transverse process fractures, nose abrasion, broken tooth and left back contusion. His blood
alcohol level was 265.0 mg/dL. That is the eguivalent of a blood aicohoi concentration of .265 percent by
weight by volume, approximately three times the legal limit for a driving while intoxicated charge. He was
discharged that night back into the custody of the jail.

Interviews of George and Gail Frenziey

Mrs. Frenzley's statement does not contain many details of what occurred in the home that night.
She states that she was in the back packing Justin’s bag when she heard Mr. Frenzley and Deputy Brothers
"having words.” Although not admitted in her statement, the BWC shows that Mrs. Frenziey was in the
room for most of the incident between her husband and Deputy Brothers in the home. Her statement

does not reflect any of her negative comments made to or about Mr. Frenzley that were captured on the
BWC.

Several portions of Mr. Frenzley’s statement also do not match the BWC. Mr. Frenzley's
statement greatly minimizes his responsibility for Deputy Brothers’ reactions to him. His statement that
he was not yeiling or inciting his son is contradicted by the BWC. Mr. Frenzley believes that Deputy
Brothers purposely acted in a way to cause his injuries. Initially, Mr. Frenzley stated that he did not
remember pulling back his arm after the handcuff came off. After seeing the video, he stated that such
movement was to circulate blood in his arm. This does not ring true since Mr. Frenzley’s arm, although
cuffed, had not been held immobile.

Analysis and Conciusion

While a significant body of case law exists regarding the lawfuiness and criminal responsibility of
a law enforcement officer’s use of deadly force, little to no caselaw exists for the use of lesser levels of

force. To determine whether a law enforcement officer’s use of force is lawful, we must turn to the
Constitution.

The Fourth Amendment prohibits police from using excessive force “in the course of making an
arrest, investigatory stop, or other seizure of his person.” See Graham v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386, at 388,
{1989); Jones v. Buchonan, 325 F.3d 520, 527 (4th Cir. 2003) {“The Fourth Amendment prohibition on
unreasonable seizures bars police officers from using excessive force to seize a free citizen.”). Once an
individual has been arrested and is awaiting an adjudication of guilt as a “pretrial detainee”, the
Fourteenth Amendment prohibits police from using excessive force “‘that amounts to punishment.””
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Kingsley v. Hendrickson, 576 U.S. 389, 135 5. Ct, 2466, 2473, 192 L .£d.2d 416 (2015) (quoting Graham, 490
U.S. at 395 n.10, 109 S. Ct. 1865).

A claim of excessive force by police during an arrest or investigatory stop is properly analyzed
under the Fourth Amendment by a determination of whether the officer's conduct was “ohjectively
reasonable.” Henry v. Purnelf, 652 F.3d 524, 531 {4th Cir, 2011} {quoting Graham, 490 U.5. at 397, 109 S.
Ct. 1865); see also Kingsley, 576 US. at __, 135 5. Ct. at 2473 {finding that excessive force claims under
the Fourteenth Amendment, just like excessive force claims under the Fourth Amendment, were properly
analyzed under a standard of objective reasonabieness).

Whitley v, Albers, 475 U.S. 312 (1986) and Farmer v. Brenner, 511 U.S. 825 {1994}, are both cases
dealing with monetary claims by injured inmates. These cases reason that a “force analysis” should
consider whether force was applied in a good faith effort to maintain and/or restore discipline as
contrasted by force applied maliciously and sadistically to cause harm. Within the backdrop of Eighth
Amendment violations, the case faw explains that factors to consider include: the extent of any injury; an
evaluation of the need for force; the relationship between the need for force and the amount of force
used; the threat level as reasonably perceived by the jailor; and efforts made to temper the severity of
the force used. Later cases added the premise that the use of force can constitute cruel and unusual

punishment even when the inmate does not suffer serious injury. See Hudson v. McMillian, 503 US 1
{1992).

In the present case, looking at the totality of the circumstances, it is objectively reascnable for
Deputy Brothers to believe that the use of force was necessary. The deputy is confronted with a just
uncuffed arrestee who is intoxicated, confrontational, having made numerous threats of physical force
against him, having seemingly already tried to kick him, and then puiling back a fisted hand in a
threatening manner. While Mr. Frenziey did begin to put down his arm, there are no other objective signs
of expected compliance or abandonment of the intent to potentially act out aggressively toward the
officer. Thus, it cannot be said that Deputy Brothers’ decision to use force was unfawful.

The next part of the equation is whether Deputy Brothers used excessive force on or assaulted
Mr. Frenzley. This Report is not intended to comment on the wisdom of Deputy Brothers heing the officer
te remove the handcuffs from Mr, Frenzley. It may also be argued that Deputy Brothers could have acted
differently or waited before his use of force. However, those are assessments outside the scope of this
Report. Additionally, his actions should not be reviewed in a vacuum, and all the circumstances leading
to the incident must be considered.  First, the initial scenario faced by Deputy Brothers must be
considered. The call was to calm an aduft male who was having a mental health issue. Upon arriving on
scene, Deputy Brothers would have noticed justin’s large stature, which could have become an issue if
things became physical. Almost immediately, it would have been apparent that Mr. Frenzley appeared
intoxicated. Mrs. Frenzley confirmed that possibility when she stated that Mr. Frenzley had heen drinking
vodka. Deputy Brothers also heard Mrs. Frenzley say that Mr. Frenzley is schizophrenic and not on
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medications. Mrs. Frenzley’s comment that Mr. Frenzley triggered Justin’s episode, combined with seeing
Mr. Frenzley’s attempts to prevent Justin’s interaction with the police, would indicate that Mr. Frenzley
couid very possibly cause disruption, Considering Justin’s potential volitivity, it was not unreasonable to
put Mr. Frenzley in handcuffs once he had disregarded Deputy Brother’s instructions.

Once Mr. Frenzley had been handcuffed and temporarily removed from the situation, Deputy
Brother's actions were calm and under control. When dealing with Justin, Deputy Brothers showed great
patience during a tense and possibly combustible situation. After Justin’s cooperation had been secured,
Deputy Brothers was prepared to released Mr. Frenzley, until other deputies indicated that he should be
charged. This indicates that Deputy Brothers was harboring no ill-will or vendetta against Mr. Frenziey.

During the ride to the jail, Mr. Frenzley was loud, abusive, and verbally aggressive, yet Deputy Brothers
displayed restraint and did not engage.

Mr, Frenziey’s lengthy stay in the waiting area provides helpful information. The slurred speech,
constant repetition, and muttering to himself indicated that Mr. Frenziey was probably still intoxicated.
His toxicology report confirms that. However, unlike many intoxicated individuals, Mr. Frenzley did not

gradually calm down. Although there were periods when Mr. Frenzley did cool down, he repeatedly would
become aggressive and verbatly abusive again.

Deputy Brothers’ takedown of Mr. Frenziey appeared to be in direct response to Mr. Frenzley
pulling his arm back and making a fist immediately after being warned against any aggressive actions.
Taking an aggressive suspect down to the ground is an established law enforcement technique. Although
Deputy Brothers ciearly meant to put Mr. Frenziey on the ground, he did not appear to use excessive force
or act with an intent to injure. It is unclear whether the head injury comes from Mr, Frenziey not being
able to use his arms to catch himself when striking the floor or from hitting a cabinet on the way down.
in either case, Deputy Brothers’ actions did not seern malicious or meant to purposely cause injury.
Although forceful, Deputy Brothers’ action did not appear out of control or done in anger. The push to the
ground did not seem excessively violent. Once Deputy Brothers had Mr. Frenzley down, he administered
no strikes or blows. Deputy Brothers did use his knee and lower {eg to help secure Mr. Frenzley as the
handcuffs were secured, but he did not appear to place excessive weight on Mr. Frenzley or use the knee

as a weapon or for an unreasonable period. Once it became apparent that Mr. Frenzley was injured,
Deputy Brothers immediately requested medical assistance.

Viewed in the totality of circumstances, the decision to apply force was lawful and the amount of

force used was not excessive. Although alternative actions could have been taken, Deputy Brothers
committed no criminal act.

Piease do not hesitate to reach out to me if you should have any questions. {804)501-4218.
Very truly yours,

s _//
It FF gl
)

Shannon L. Taylor

SLT/msh Commonwealth’s Attorney for Henrico County
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G ma I I Andrew Meyer <ameyer@ameyeriaw.com®>

£ OuA request e e e

Paul Brothers W Fri, Sep 3, 2021 at 12:20 PM
To: Chrls Smith i

Co "ameyer@ameyeraw.com” <ameyer@ameyeriaw.com>

Lt. Smith,

1 hope all is welt with you sir. Since the ciminal investigation has been complsted | wanted to FOIA the body cam video and the use of force
paperwork for the incident involving Mr, Frenzley.

Thank you for your assistenca in this matier.
Truly,

=
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Gma EI Andrew Meyer <ameyer@zmeyerlaw.com>

FOIA Request

Chris Smith <csmith@westcoso.us> Tue, Sep 14, 2021 at 4:48 PM

To: Andrew Meyer <ameyer@ameyeraw.com>

Mr, Meyer,

Per our conversation attached is the paper partion of the FOIA, If there is anything eise you need please feel free to contact me. The rest
of the information was mailed 09/10/2021 to the P.O. Box address below.

E sl rmpm el et

8 attachments
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T“"_"a Use of Force Report Sgt. D. Jackson.pdf
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it's Oftice
Westmoreland County Sheriff’s Office
Use of Force — Injury to Prisoner Part A
Incident
Date of Incident: 04/04/2021 Time of Incident: 0030 hours
Location of Incident: ~ Westmoreland County Sheriff"s Office - IBR: 202100260

Briel Description of Incident:

Mr. Frenzley was in custody at the Westmoreland County Sheriff"s Office. Mr. Frenzley was about to
be transported to the Jail by Deputy Shackelford. When I took Mr. Frenzleys handcuft off (that was
connected to the bench) to place him in handcuffs behind his back. he balled his fist up in what
appeared to be an attempt to punch me. Mr. Frenzley was taken to the ground to be handcuffed. In the
course of Mr. Frenzley being taken to the ground, he hit his head on the ground and received a cut on
his nose and head. After he was handcufted I immediately started to render first aid. Medics were
called and arrived on scene a few minutes later to take over the medical attention for Mr.

Frenzley.

Type/extent of force used:

Arm bar takedown

Officer(s) Involved

Officer(s) Involved: 1. Sr. Dep. P. Brothers CP Number: 22
2. Dep. T. Shackelford 24
3.
4.

Witness/Witness Written Statement
Witness Name:  Deputy T. Shackeiford
Address:  WCSO_ B

Home Phone Number - ~ Work Phone Number:

Witness Name:
Address:

Home Phone Number o ~ Work Phone Number:






-

W
s

Analysis/Conclusion of Investigating Supervisor: . .
/ sating Sup After watching the body camera from

Deputy Brothers and Deputy Shackelford I believe Deputy Brothers used the amount of force

Necessary to prohibit Mr. Frenzley from assaulting him. From the video you can obviously

See Mr. Frenzley ball his fist up in an aggressive manor in attempt to strike Deputy Brothers
contrary to what Mr. Frenzley stated to me at the hospital.

Investigating Supervisor’s Signature:

Investigating Supervisor’s Printed
Name: Sat. D.W, Jackson

Date: 47472021

[P¥)



Chain Of Command Review
Investigating Supervisor

Use &t force was consistent with Departmental policy and applicable law

Approved
[ ] Disapproved

Use of force was appropriate under the circumstances
[id Approved

[[] Disapproved (If disapproved. provide a statement as to what other force options or course of
action may have been more appropriate under the circumstances.

Y

5 ‘m, - J, / —— / o
Supervisor: %/;;;L “f VAN };{-’(/’{/o.;\ Date: L/-r)} 21

Captain

Use of force was consistent with Departmental policy and applicable law
[ ] Approved

[ ] Disapproved

Use of force was appropriate under the cireumstances
[ ] Approved

[] Disapproved (If disapproved. provide a statement as to what other force options or course of
action may have been more appropriate under the circumstances.

Captain: Date:




w

Major:
Use of force was consistent with Departmental policy and applicable law
[ ] Approved

[] Disapproved

Use of force was appropriate under the circumstances
] Approved

[ ] Disapproved (1f disapproved. provide a statement as 1o what other force options or course of
action may have been more appropriate under the circumstances.

Major: Date;

Sheriff:

Use of force was consistent with Deparumental policy and applicable law
[] Approved

[ ] Disapproved

Use of force was appropriate under the circumstances
[ ] Approved

[ ] Disapproved (If disapproved. provide a statement as to what other force options or course of
action may have been more appropriate under the circumstances.

Sheriff: Date:

b ]





